
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

4. ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO AGENDA 

5. DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

6. CONSENT AGENDA: 
A. Approval of Minutes – February 21, 2017 

B. Statement of Fund Balance / Budget to Date  - January 2017 

C. First Quarter Billing for 2018 Payable 2019 Property Tax Assessment – Ken Tolzmann 

D. Contractor’s Licenses 

E. Correspondence 

7. CODE ENFORCEMENT REPORT 

8. NEW BUSINESS 

A.  City Council Travel Reimbursement Policy 

B.  Metro Cities Membership 

C.  Reduction of Substance Church Financial Surety 

9. ENGINEER’S REPORT 

10. ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

11. REPORTS 

A.  Beyond the Yellow Ribbon Report 

B.  Volunteer Picnic 

12. OTHER 

A. Administrator Reports 

13. ADJOURN 

 

 

 

SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR RULES FOR PUBLIC HEARINGS AND  

DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

MONDAY, MARCH 6, 2017 

7:00 P.M. 

 
 



RULES FOR PUBLIC HEARINGS AND 
DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

**Limited to 3 minutes per person to state their concern. 

**Action: Council direction to staff for resolution or take this matter under advisement 
for action at the next regularly scheduled meeting. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

Advise audience that the purpose of the public hearing is to receive citizen input on the 
proposal to (name of project). (This is not a time to debate the issue.) 

The following f01mat will be used to conduct the hearing: 

** The presenter will have a maximum of 10 minutes to explain the project as proposed. 

** Councilmembers will have an opp01iunity to ask questions or comment on the 
proposal. 

** Citizens will then have an opportunity to ask questions and/or comment on the 
project. Those wishing to comment are asked to limit their comments to 3 minutes, 
except in cases where there is a spokesperson representing a group wishing to have their 
collective opinions voiced. The spokesperson should identify the audience group her/she 
is representing and may have a maximum of 10 minutes to express the views of the 
group. 

**People wishing to comment are asked to state any new facts they may have within the 
3 minutes allotted. Please be specific and to the point. 

** Everyone will be given the opportunity to express their agreement or disagreement 
even if they have no new points to make. (This is not a time to debate the issue.) 

* * People wishing to speak twice will be given 2 minutes to comment on any new facts 
brought forward since the last time they spoke. 

Following public input, the Council will have a second opportunity to ask questions of 
the presenter and/or citizens. 

The public hearing will then be adjourned with the Council taking the matter under 
advisement until the next regularly scheduled Council meeting. At the next regular 
meeting, the Council will debate the issue, if necessary, state their positions and make a 
decision. NO further public input will be received at that time. 



   OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 

 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, the regularly scheduled meeting of the Spring Lake Park City Council 

was held on February 21, 2017 at the Spring Lake Park Community Center, 1301 81st Avenue N.E., at   

7:00 P.M. 

 

1.  Call to Order 

 

Mayor Hansen called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 

 

2.  Roll Call 

 

Members Present: Councilmembers Nelson, Wendling, Delfs, Goodboe-Bisschoff and Mayor Hansen 

 

Members Absent: None 

 

Staff Present: Building Official Brainard; Police Chief Ebeltoft; Public Works Director Randall; 

Parks and Recreation Director Rygwall; Attorney Thames; Administrator Buchholtz 

and Executive Assistant Gooden  

 

Visitors: Paddy Jones, Ham Lake 

 George Eilertson, Northland Securities, Inc. 

 Patricia Nauman, Metro Cities 

 Olivia Alveshere, ABC Newspapers      

  

3.  Pledge of Allegiance 

 

4.  Additions or Corrections to Agenda 

 

Administrator Buchholtz requested that Item 6.1. 2 AM liquor license for Monte’s Sports Bar be added to the 

agenda.  

 

5.  Discussion From The Floor - None 

 

6.  Consent Agenda: 

 

Mayor Hansen reviewed the following Consent Agenda items: 

A. Approval of Minutes – February 6, 2017 

B. Approval of Minutes – February 13, 2017 

C. Disbursements 

 1. General Fund Disbursement Claim No.  17-01 -- $386,701.36 

 2. Liquor Fund Disbursement Claim No.    17-02 -- $169,124.05 

D. Mayor’s Proclamation – A Day of Action to End Domestic Violence – March 7, 2017 

E. 2017 First Half Suburban Rate Authority Assessment 

F. Application for Exempt Permit – Park Terrace PTA- February 23, 2017 at Park Terrace Elementary 

G.  Contractor’s License 

H.   Correspondence 

I. 2 AM Liquor License – Monte’s Sports Bar, 8299 University Avenue NE 

 

Mayor Hansen requested that corrections be made to the February 6, 2017 minutes. The changes were noted. 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 2 FEBRUARY 21, 2017 

 

Councilmember Wendling asked that Item 6.E., 2017 First Half Suburban Rate Authority Assessment, be 

explained.  Administrator Buchholtz explained that the Suburban Rate Authority represents cities on utility 

issues before the Public Utilities Commission. He stated that dues are paid twice a year and the current invoice  

is for the first half of the year. 

 

Councilmember Delfs inquired if there were other establishments in the City that have a 2 AM liquor license. 

Administrator Buchholtz confirmed that there are other establishments. 

 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER NELSON APPROVING THE CONSENT AGENDA WITH 

CORRECTIONS TO THE FEBRUARY 6, 2017 MINUTES.  ROLL CALL VOTE:  ALL AYES.  

MOTION CARRIED. 

 

7. Police Report 

 

Police Chief Ebeltoft reviewed the January 2017 department statistics. 

 

Chief Ebeltoft reported that the Police Department responded to four hundred sixty three calls for service for 

the month of January 2017 compared to three hundred ninety two calls for service in January 2016. 

 

Chief Ebeltoft reported that the Spring Lake Park Police on annual basis conducts a yearly review of the 

Selective Intensified Traffic Enforcement Program (S.I.T.E). He stated that this program was designed to focus 

on traffic violations to include but not limited to speeding, seatbelt/child restraint violations, DAC/DAR/DAS 

and wrong addresses on drivers licenses. He reported that for the year 2016, Spring Lake Park Police 

Department worked one hundred three shifts of S.I.T.E. in the community. He noted that eight hundred seventy 

vehicles were stopped, and eight hundred nine citations were issued along with three hundred twenty nine 

warnings.  

 

Chief Ebeltoft explained that the cost of this program for 2016 was $29,411.91 and the revenue generated from 

the program was $58,293.07. He stated that the program is self-funding, which allows the Police Department 

to continue with this program.  He stated that the net proceeds from this program are $28,881.16, which are 

placed into the General Fund of the City, as funds are received from the courts and State of Minnesota. 

 

Chief Ebeltoft reported, in addition to addressing the day-to-day operations of the Department, he attended 

numerous meetings throughout the month representing Spring Lake Park Police Department and the City of 

Spring Lake Park.  

 

8.  Parks and Recreation Report 

 

Parks and Recreation Director Rygwall reported that the Parks and Recreation Commission met and discussed 

their involvement in Tower Days and decided they will participate in the parade and run carnival games. She 

reported that the election of officers for 2017 took place, with Dan Lambert being elected chair. 

 

Ms. Rygwall reviewed the department statistics and reported that staff prepared for the Senior Valentine 

Luncheon. She reported that Tower Days applications are coming into the office and the finalizing of contracts 

with pre-determined vendors has started.  

 

Ms. Rygwall reported that staff has started working on softball preparations. She stated that the office staff has 

been working on team sponsor letters, bids for t-shirts and scheduling team photo sessions. 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 3 FEBRUARY 21, 2017 

 

9. Ordinances and/or Resolution 

 

A.  Resolution 17-08 Resolution Providing for the Execution of a Third Supplement to Joint Powers Agreement  

      (Fire Protection) 

 

Administrator Buchholtz presented the Joint Powers Agreement to Council for their approval for the financing 

of the various equipment for municipal fire protection and firefighting purposes. He noted that the amended 

supplement would allow Spring Lake Park to issue the bonds necessary for the purchase of the new fire 

equipment for the Spring Lake Park Blaine Mounds View Fire Department. He noted that the City of Blaine 

and Mounds View would be responsible for their portion of the share to the City in case of default. 

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 17-08 PROVIDING FOR THE 

EXECUTION OF A THIRD SUPPLEMENT TO JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT (FIRE PROTECTION). 

ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

B.  Resolution 17-09 Awarding 2017A General Equipment Certificates 

 

George Eilertson from Northland Securities reported that the bond rating for the City of Spring Lake Park has 

been assigned by Standard and Poor’s Rating Services for the purchase of the fire equipment for the Spring 

Lake Park Blaine Mound View Fire Department.  He reported that the City was assigned a rating of “AA”. He 

noted that this is higher rating compared to the past rating of AA3 assigned by Moody’s Bond Rating. 

 

Mr. Eilertson reported that some of the highlights of the assigned bond rating included: strong management, 

with good financial policies and practices, very strong budgetary flexibility, with a high available fund balance 

of 42% operating expenditures and strong debt and contingent liability position, with all debt scheduled to be 

retired within 10 years. 

 

Councilmember Wendling inquired what the top bond rating is a city can attain. Mr. Eilertson reported that 

large municipalities can receive a AAA rating however; he noted that many cities in the metro area have a   

similar rating as Spring Lake Park.  

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated that the bond rating upgrade resulted in lower interest rate, thereby providing 

interest savings to the three municipalities. 

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 17-09 AWARDING THE SALE 

OF $1,090,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATES OF INDEBTEDNESS, SERIES 

2017A; FIXING THEIR FORM AND SPECIFICATIONS, DIRECTING THEIR EXECUTION AND 

DELIVERY; AND PROVIDING FOR THEIR PAYMENT. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION 

CARRIED. 

 

10.  New Business 

 

A.  2017-2021 Capital Improvement Plan 

 

Administrator Buchholtz presented the proposed 2017-2021 Capital Improvement Plan. He thanked the 

Department Heads for their assistance in preparing the Capital Improvement Plan. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz explained the Capital Improvement Plan is broken down as: 1) Capital Projects by 

Department and 2) Capital Projects by Funding Source.  He stated that the 2017-2021 Capital Improvement 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 4 FEBRUARY 21, 2017 

 

Plan identifies $4,524,875 in capital improvement projects over the next five years.  

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated the 2017 projects identified for funding in the General Fund have been included 

in the 2017 General Fund Budget.  He reported that there a number of building related projects that are not 

included in the 2017-2021 Capital Improvement Plan.  He stated those projects, the largest of which is the City 

Hall renovations/expansion project, will be included in future editions of this plan. He noted however, the future 

costs must be considered when funding capital improvements in this five-year period. He stated that a 

presentation on the space needs study will be presented to the City Council at a workshop session in April. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the Capital Improvement Plan is setting the stage for the issuance of the 

2017 Equipment Certificate, to fund equipment for 2018-2022.  He stated that based on projects identified in 

the CIP, staff is anticipating the size of the equipment certificate to be $870,000. He stated that this is higher 

than past certificates, which have been around $640,000. He explained that part of the reason is that a number 

of vehicle purchases that were anticipated to be completed in the 2013-2017 certificate were pushed off into 

the 2018-2022 certificate.  He added the 2013 certificate was not sized to accommodate the Council Chambers 

cable equipment upgrade. He noted that the size of the equipment certificate has been the same for 20 years, 

while the purchasing power of the money raised by the equipment certificate has decreased by 35%. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated that it is important to note that the 2017-2021 Capital Improvement Plan is a 

financial planning document and approval of the plan does not represent approval of any project in the plan. 

 

Mayor Hansen reported that the items in the CIP were discussed at a workshop and the Council discussed them. 

She stated that the Department Head staff worked very hard on the items. 

 

Councilmember Nelson stated that although the figures look like large amounts, in the long term it is a useful 

tool and planning to help level future tax levies.  Mayor Hansen agreed. 

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN TO APPROVE 2017-2012 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED.  

 

11.  Engineer’s Report 

 

Engineer Gravel reported that bids will be received on March 8, 2017 for the 2017 Sanitary Lining Project and 

the 2017-2018 Street Seal Coat Project. He stated that he is continuing to work with staff on drainage issues 

and some field survey information has been obtained. 

 

Mr. Gravel reported that in January, the Office of State Aid announced the 2017 Maintenance and Construction 

Allotments for the MSAS cities as approved by the Commissioner of Transportation.  He stated that the City 

of Spring Lake Park received the following allocations: Construction allocation of $180,097 and Maintenance 

allocation of $60,033.  He stated the total combined construction and maintenance allocation for 2017 is 

$240,130. He stated the 2017 total is an increase of $5,744 from 2016. He noted that the allocation has been 

increasing steadily over the past four years. 

 

Mr. Gravel stated that reimbursement requests to State Aid for previous State Aid eligible projects including 

the 2014-2015 Street Improvement Project. He stated that the current total pending reimbursement amount in 

the State Aid system is about $973,200, which means that for the next five, or six years the City will received 

the construction portion of their State Aid allocation without needing to submit any additional reimbursement 

requests. 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 5 FEBRUARY 21, 2017 

 

Mr. Gravel reported that he has completed the paperwork associated with the annual certification of mileage 

and submitted it to the Office of State Aid. He stated that here were no mileage changes from the previous year. 

 

12.  Attorney’s Report - None 

 

13.  Reports 

 

A. Administrator Reports 

 

1.  Metro Cities Dues/Information 

 

Patricia Nauman, Executive Director for Metro Cities, provided information to the Council on the services that 

Metro Cities provides for member cities.  She stated that the Metro Cities organization represents cities in the 

seven county metropolitan area at the Legislature, Governor’s Office, and the Metropolitan Council.  She 

reported that they are the only local government agency that lobbies the Metropolitan Council.  She stated that 

that their staff monitors all activity and policymaking of the Council, and represents the interests of metro cities 

to ensure that city needs and concerns are accounted for in the Met Council’s decisions. 

 

Ms. Nauman reported that at the Capitol, Metro Cities lobbies on an array of city issues, including 

transportation, government aid, fiscal disparities, property taxes/revenues, economic development, housing, 

maintaining local authority, and a range of other issues. 

 

Ms. Nauman stated that dues for the first year of membership would be at a one-time 50% discount for a total 

of $1,429.00 for 2017. Administrator Buchholtz explained that since that fee was not budgeted for in 2017, he 

stated that there is rebate money from city credit card purchases in a discretionary fund that would cover the 

cost. 

 

Councilmember Nelson stated that he likes the concept of the organization and the work they do with the Met 

Council. He wishes that the Met Council would provide cities, like Spring Lake Park, more funding to address 

the mandates they impose. 

 

Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff inquired if a discount could be given since the year has already started and 

the city would not be paying for a full year.  Ms. Nauman stated that she will look into a prorated amount and 

would be willing to work with the City on the fee. 

 

Councilmember Nelson inquired as to how successful Metro Cities has been lobbying for cities on issues. Ms. 

Nauman stated that Metro Cities has been successful on many issues and has helped many cities with LGA and 

direct funding. She stated that she would provide the Council with a brochure with their accomplishments. 

 

Mayor Hansen asked for more information be sent to the Councilmembers to review and tabled a decision until 

the March 6, 2017 Council meeting. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that he attended the HRA meeting for the Osborne Road Trail Project. He 

reported that the presentation went well and that a public hearing on the grant funds will be held on March 6, 

2017. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the Council does not have a written mileage reimbursement policy in 

place. He stated that that he is looking for direction on how to proceed with mileage reimbursement requests 

for events within the City that Councilmembers attend. 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 6 FEBRUARY 21, 2017 

 

Mayor Hansen stated that she has not seen a policy but it was her understanding that only events outside of the 

city such as League of Minnesota conferences are reimbursed. She stated that mileage to and from meetings 

within the city are not reimbursed. 

 

Councilmember Nelson stated that he is in favor of reimbursement for out of town meetings and conferences. 

 

Councilmember Wendling stated that he sees the mileage to and from meetings as part of the duties of being a 

Councilmember. 

 

The consensus of the Council was to create a policy stating that mileage would be reimbursed for out of town 

trainings and no reimbursement will be provided for meetings within the city. 

 

15.  Other 

 

Councilmember Nelson reminded residents of the Beyond the Yellow Ribbon pork chop dinner on  

February 27, 2017. 

 

16.  Adjourn 

 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER HANSEN TO ADJOURN.  VOICE VOTE:  ALL AYES.  MOTION 

CARRIED. 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:03 PM. 

 

                    __________________________________ 

                    Cindy Hansen, Mayor  

 

Attest: 

 

__________________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 





 





 

























 





 





 























 
Memorandum 
To:   Mayor Hansen and Members of the City Council 

From:  Daniel R. Buchholtz, MMC, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

Date:  February 24, 2017 

Subject: Council Travel Reimbursement Policy 
 

Attached is a draft of the “City Council Travel Reimbursement Policy.”  Staff wanted to draft one 
policy that would include not only mileage reimbursement for attending committee meetings, but 
also travel expenses that incur when attending a conference (e.g. the Minnesota Mayors 
Conference or LMC Annual Conference). 

Please review and provide feedback on the proposed policy. 

If you have any questions on the proposed policy, please don’t hesitate to contact me at 763-784-
6491. 



CITY COUNCIL TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT POLICY 

2017 

 

 

Elected officials may incur expenses while conducting City business or attending approved 

conferences or trainings that are paid by the City.  This policy governs the reimbursement of 

these expenses. 

 

When an elected official uses his or her own personal vehicle for travel, he/she will be 

reimbursed at the IRS business mileage rate, as established from time to time by the IRS.   

 

Mileage will be reimbursed as follows: 

• Mileage to meetings/events located within the city limits of the city of Spring Lake Park 

are not reimbursable.   

• Mileage to meetings outside the city limits will only be reimbursed to the appointed 

liaison or alternate. 

 

The City will reimburse elected officials for reasonable business travel expenses incurred while 

attending conferences and training outside the city limits.  All in-state conference attendance 

must be approved in advance by the City Council.  The City will pay actual costs for meals (only 

those not included the conference/training fee), lodging (if conference/training is outside the 7-

county metro area), and parking.  Mileage will be reimbursed at the IRS business mileage rate, as 

established from time to time by the IRS. 

 

Elected officials must complete an expense statement form and attach receipts for any allowable 

meals, lodging, transportation and/or parking expenses incurred.  Expense statements must be 

submitted to the Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer for approval.  All expenses must be supported 

by receipts. 



 
Memorandum 
To:   Mayor Hansen and Members of the City Council 

From:  Daniel R. Buchholtz, MMC, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

Date:  February 24, 2017 

Subject: Metro Cities Membership 
 

Attached is a letter from Patricia Nauman, Executive Director of Metro Cities, with the additional 
information the City Council requested. 

As I mentioned at our meeting on February 21, the City receives approximately $3,000 in rebates 
each year through staff’s use of the US Bank “One Card” purchasing card.  These rebates are not 
budgeted as revenue in the General Fund budget as they can fluctuate based on usage.  Staff 
recommends using a portion of the 2017 rebate to pay the dues for our 2017 Metro Cities 
membership.  Membership for 2018 and beyond would be added to the General Fund budget. 

At a pro-rated amount, the membership for Metro Cities would be $1,191.00 for March through 
December. 

If you have any additional questions about Metro Cities, please don’t hesitate to contact me at 
763-784-6491.  I can reach out to Patty to have your questions answered. 









 
Memorandum 
To:   Mayor Hansen and Members of the City Council 

From:  Daniel R. Buchholtz, MMC, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

Date:  February 24, 2017 

Subject: Substance Church Escrow for CSAH 35 Sidewalk Project 
 

The CSAH 35 sidewalk project, construction of which was a condition of the conditional use 
permit for Substance Church, is complete.  The Substance Church escrow with the city is current 
and all outstanding invoices for the project have been paid. 

Based on the recommendation of City Engineer Gravel, staff recommends reducing the financial 
surety from $53,500 to $5,000.  The remaining $5,000 will be held until Rice Creek Watershed 
District closes the permit this spring.  RCWD wants to ensure that the seeding done last fall is 
adequate for their standards. 

If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to contact me at 763-784-6491. 



 



 

 

 

 
City of Spring Lake Park  

Engineer’s Project Status Report 
 

 

To: Council Members and Staff  Re: Status Report for 3.6.17 Meeting       
 

From:  Phil Gravel     File No.: R-18GEN  
 

 

Note:  Updated information is shown in italics.    
 

 
MS4 Permit (193802936). 

Working with the Public Works Director and the Administrator to develop a work plan for 

2017 MS4 items and to begin initial discussions on the process for updating the surface 

water management plan.  Will discuss possible stormwater modeling options in April.     

 
2017 Sanitary Sewer Lining Project (193803782). 

Working with Public Works Director on plans and specs for this project in the 

neighborhood east of Able Street and north of 81st Avenue.  Bids will be received on 

March 8th and presented to Council on March 21st.   

 
2017-2018 Street Seal Coat Project (193803783). 

Working with Public Works Director on plans and specs for this 2-year project.  Bids will be 

received on March 8th and presented to Council on March 21st.   

   

Other issues/projects.    
 

Attended Coon Creek Watershed District (CCWD) Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) 

meeting.  Discussion items included O&M Agreements, weir structures, and the timeline 

for preparing updated Surface Water Management Plans. 

 

City’s Water Supply Plan (DNR requirement) has been reviewed by the DNR and 

forwarded to the Met Council for review.   

 

Working with Dan and Terry on possible Obrorne Rd. bituminous trail repairs, including 

CDBG grant application.    

 

Working with staff on development review for possible Dominium project.   

 

Working with staff on drainage issues.  Some field survey information has been obtained.  

We will discuss next steps including the need to complete some stormwater modeling 

with the Public Works Director and the Administrator in April.     
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Feel free to contact Harlan Olson, Phil Carlson, Jim Engfer, Mark Rolfs, Tim Grinstead, Peter Allen, or me if you 

have any questions or require any additional information.   



 



 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  MAYOR HANSEN AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

  

FROM:  DANIEL R. BUCHHOLTZ, CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

 

SUBJECT:  VOLUNTEER APPRECIATION PICNIC 

   

DATE:  FEBRUARY 22, 2017 

_____________________________________________________________________________________  

 

Volunteer Appreciation week is April 23-29, 2017.  City staff would like to host a picnic/potluck 

in the evening of April 27, 2017 at Lakeside Park to recognize our volunteers and members of 

the various City Commissions.   

 

Since there are no funds for such event, staff is inquiring if the Council members would be 

interested in contributing to the event. Staff would like to provide hot dogs/brats, lemonade, 

coffee and cake to the volunteers. Volunteers would bring a dish to share.  

 

Staff feels an event, such as this, would be a great way for members of the various committees to 

meet one another and it would provide an opportunity for the Council to recognize the volunteers 

their time and talents they provide to the City. 

 

Thank you for your consideration in hosting the event. 

 
 



 



 
CORRESPONDENCE 

  



 



Ewald Government 
Relations Team

David Ewald
651-290-6276

davide@ewald.com

Nick de Julio
651-290-6286

nickd@ewald.com

Valerie Dosland
651-265-7857

valeried@ewald.com

Patrick Lobejko 
651-290-7473 

patrickl@ewald.com

Jess Myers
651-290-7465

jessm@ewald.com

Troy Olsen
651-288-3424

troyo@ewald.com

Becca Pryse
651-265-7858

beccap@ewald.com

Owen Wirth
651-288-3438

owenw@ewald.com

1000 Westgate Drive, Ste. 252 • St. Paul, MN 55114 • 651-290-6260 • Fax: 651-290-2266 • ewald@ewald.com • www.ewald.com

Copyright © 2017. All rights reserved.

House Republicans’ Majority 
Grows to 77
Residents of House District 32B have been 

without representation in the House of Repre-

sentatives since former-Rep. Bob Barrett was 

declared by the State Supreme Court that he 

did not fulfill the residency requirements for 

public office. This week Republican candi-

date Anne Neu defeated Democratic-Farmer-

Labor candidate Laurie Warner by a margin 

of 53 percent to 47 percent. Just over 7,000 

people turned out for the special election, 

which means 25 percent of eligible voters 

cast their ballots. With the Republican vic-

tory, their majority in the House grows to 20 

members, with a margin of 77 Republicans 

and 57 Democrats.

Representative-elect Anne Neu’s swearing in 

has yet to be scheduled, and it is not known 

what her committee assignments will be at 

this point. Neu is a homemaker, homeschool 

mother and served on the North Branch Plan-

ning Commission.

Super Bowl Legislation
Tax Breaks

As many people know, Super Bowl 52 will 

be held in Minneapolis at U.S. Bank Stadium 

on February 4, 2018, and there have been 

a number of legislative proposals offered in 

advance of the major sporting event com-

ing to Minnesota. Senate Minority Leader 

Tom Bakk (DFL-Cook) has proposed SF 900, 

which would offer a number of tax breaks 

for the National Football League front office 

that were outlined as a bid requirement when 

Minnesota originally secured the Super Bowl 

in May of 2014, including breaks on tickets 

and parking. The bill includes provisions that 

were in the 2016 tax bill that was ultimately 

vetoed by Gov. Mark Dayton for unrelated 

issues, and would need to be passed this 

legislative session in order to take effect by 

next February. 

With Senate Majority Leader Paul Gazelka 

(R-Nisswa) as a co-author on the proposal, it 

is highly likely this bill will pass the Senate 

sometime this year. The bill does not have a 

companion in the House.

February 17, 2017

ewald at the capitol

They said it:
“I’m eager to roll up my sleeves and get to work with my House colleagues 

working to make health care more affordable, cut taxes for families, and 
build a budget that respects Minnesota taxpayers.”  

– Representative-elect Anne Neu (R-North Branch), on winning the February 
special election



Continued from page 1

Twin Cities Bars Open until 4 A.M.

A proposal from Rep. Raymond Dehn (DFL-Minneapolis) 

would allow bars in the Twin Cities area to be open until 4 

a.m. from Friday, February 2 through Monday, February 5, 

2018. HF 217 would require that the extension of business 

hours would be subject to approval from local municipali-

ties. Similar measures were passed by the legislature when 

the Major League Baseball All-Star game was at Target Field 

in 2014, and when St. Paul hosted the Republican National 

Convention in 2008.

Ice Fishing Without a License

Rep. Tony Jurgens (R-Cottage Grove) has offered HF 974, 

which would allow for ice fishing without a license from 

Sunday, January 28 through Sunday, February 4, 2018. Rep. 

Jurgens stated he would like people travelling to Minnesota 

to be able to enjoy a winter pastime while here for the Super 

Bowl, and that this will likely be limited to a select few lakes 

as it makes its way through the committee process.

Joint Convention to Elect the Board of 
Regents
The House and Senate have agreed to hold a joint conven-

tion on Wednesday, February 22 at 7:00 p.m. for the purpose 

of electing four people to the University of Minnesota’s Board 

of Regents, the governing body for the university. The four 

nominees for the four available positions are:

• Steve Sviggum for the second congressional district

• Darrin Rosha for the third congressional district

• David McMillan for the eighth congressional district

• Tom Devine for the at-large seat

Legacy Committee
In 2008 voters in Minnesota decided to amend the State 

Constitution to include the Clean Water, Land and Legacy 

Amendment. The amendment increased the sales tax by 

three-eighths of one percent in order to have dedicated funds 

for protecting drinking water; enhancing and restoring wet-

lands, prairies, forests, and fish, game, and wildlife habitat; 

preserving arts and cultural heritage; and to support parks 

and trails.

The House and Senate Legacy committee members have 

been meeting weekly discussing individual proposals that are 

aimed at the objective of the Legacy Amendment.

A Beginner’s Guide to Social Media
Twitter has become a mainstay of communication at the 

capitol complex, and is used by legislators, capitol press, 

staff members, and even agencies and institutions. There are 

a number of great people and hashtags to follow in order to 

stay up to date on the latest news in the legislature. If you are 

new to Twitter, Ewald Consulting has a beginner’s guide for 

whom to follow on Twitter.

Mark Your Calendar!
Here is the basic schedule for the legislative session, as it 

currently stands:

• Wednesday, February 22: Joint Convention to elect the 
Board of Regents

• Tuesday, February 28: February budget forecast will be 
released

• Friday, March 10: First committee deadline

• Friday, March 17: Second committee deadline

• Friday, March 31: Third committee deadline

• Monday, April 10-Monday, April 17: Legislative spring 
break

• Monday, May 22: Session adjourns



Ewald Government 
Relations Team

David Ewald
651-290-6276

davide@ewald.com

Nick de Julio
651-290-6286

nickd@ewald.com

Valerie Dosland
651-265-7857

valeried@ewald.com

Patrick Lobejko 
651-290-7473 

patrickl@ewald.com

Jess Myers
651-290-7465

jessm@ewald.com

Troy Olsen
651-288-3424

troyo@ewald.com

Becca Pryse
651-265-7858

beccap@ewald.com

Owen Wirth
651-288-3438

owenw@ewald.com

1000 Westgate Drive, Ste. 252 • St. Paul, MN 55114 • 651-290-6260 • Fax: 651-290-2266 • ewald@ewald.com • www.ewald.com

Copyright © 2016. All rights reserved.

Legislative Salary Council
In the 2016 election, Minnesotans voted to 

remove lawmakers’ abilities to set their own 

salaries. Minnesotans opted for the creation 

of a citizen-only council that would decide 

what lawmakers would get paid. The council 

consists of 16 members that were appointed 

by Gov. Mark Dayton and Supreme Court 

Chief Justice Lorie Skjerven Gildea. Legislator 

base salary has not changed since 1999 due 

to legislators’ fear of repercussions from their 

constituents if they re-ran for office. Salary 

is currently set at $31,140 a year. On top 

of the base salary, legislators also receive 

reimbursements (called “per diem”) for 

lodging expenses and traveling long distance 

to serve at the capitol, even when the 

legislature is not in session.

The new council is currently faced with 

the complex issue of maintaining the base 

salary or raising it, as former legislators have 

testified about their struggles with the current 

rate of pay. The council has been meeting 

since January and must reach a decision on 

legislator salaries for the next two years by 

Friday, March 31.

Election of the Board of Regents
Every odd-numbered year, the legislature is 

required to elect new members to the Board 

of Regents, the University of Minnesota’s gov-

erning body. The unpaid positions are held 

for six-year terms, and are based on congres-

sional districts, with a number of at-large 

seats. On Wednesday, February 22, a joint 

convention between the House and Senate 

was held to elect the next members of the 

Board of Regents:

• Steve Sviggum, former Speaker of the 
House (1999-2006), will represent the 
second congressional district

• Darrin Rosha (re-elected) will represent the 
third congressional district

• David McMillan (re-elected) will represent 
the eighth congressional district

• Ken Powell, CEO of General Mills, was 
selected for the at-large seat

The election was effective immediately, so 

the members began their terms this week.

Real ID Compliance
Over the past few years, legislators have been 

grappling with the issue of addressing Real 

ID standards set by the federal government 

in the early 2000s. The goal is to increase 

February 24, 2017

They said it:
“I do think that the consumers of Minnesota have spoken, have spoken loudly 

and spoken over a long period of time.” 

– Rep. Jenifer Loon (R-Eden Prairie), on Sunday Liquor Sales

ewald at the capitol

mailto:davide@ewald.com
mailto:nickd@ewald.com
mailto:valeried@ewald.com
mailto:patrickl%40ewald.com?subject=
mailto:jessm@ewald.com
mailto:troyo@ewald.com
mailto:beccap@ewald.com
mailto:owenw@ewald.com
mailto:ewald@ewald.com
http://www.ewald.com


security standards for federal buildings and airports following 

the terrorist attacks on Sept. 11, 2001. In 2009 Minnesota 

passed a law that forbade the government from taking steps 

to become Real ID compliant, citing privacy issues as the 

reason for refusal. The deadline for Real ID compliance is 

2018, so with just one year remaining, legislators have been 

making efforts to comply with the regulations or else Minne-

sota residents may have difficulty boarding airplanes.

This week the House passed HF 3, chief authored by Rep. 

Dennis Smith (R-Maple Grove), which would make Minne-

sota licenses fully compliant with the Real ID standards. The 

Senate bill, SF 166, chief authored by Sen. Eric Pratt (R-Prior 

Lake) was passed out of the Senate State Government com-

mittee this week, and awaits action by the Senate Finance 

committee before heading to the Senate floor for a vote by 

the full body.

Sunday Liquor Sales Passes the House
On Monday, February 20, the House passed HF 30, chief 

authored by Jenifer Loon (R-Eden Prairie), which would al-

low the purchase of off-sale liquor on Sundays, 10 a.m.-6 

p.m. A perennial issue at the capitol, Sunday liquor sales 

bills have been heard on the floor of either the House or 

Senate for years but never gained substantial support. Last 

year, the measure was voted down by 75 members of the 

House, while this year 85 members voted to allow Sunday 

liquor sales. The Senate version, SF 1086, chief authored by 

Sen. Jeremy Miller (R-Winona), still has committee stops to 

make, but will likely be heard on the Senate floor sometime 

this session.

Rep. Neu Sworn in
The newest member of the House of Representatives was 

officially sworn in, as Rep. Anne Neu (R-North Branch) has 

become the 134th member of the chamber. There have only 

been 133 members since session convened in January due to 

former Rep. Bob Barrett being declared ineligible to run for 

the seat because he didn’t meet the residency requirements 

for running in House District 32B.

Rep. Neu will serve on the Job Growth and Energy Afford-

ability Policy and Finance, Property Tax and Local Govern-

ment Finance Division, and the Transportation and Regional 

Governance Policy committees.

Legislative Tracker
To date, four bills have been passed by both chambers and 

signed into law. Gov. Dayton has a legislative tracker that 

shows all bills signed into law. So far, there has been a bill 

creating a Rural Finance Authority, health insurance premi-

um relief, a property tax provision change and a federal tax 

conformity measure.

Mark Your Calendar!
The next important step in the legislative session is the an-

nouncement of the February budget forecast, on Tuesday, 

February 28 (Ewald Consulting will provide a brief summary 

of the February forecast on Tuesday shortly after its an-

nouncement).

Here is the basic schedule for the legislative session, as it 

currently stands:

• Tuesday, February 28: February budget forecast will be 
released

• Friday, March 10: First committee deadline

• Friday, March 17: Second committee deadline

• Friday, March 31: Third committee deadline

• Monday, April 10-Monday, April 17: Legislative spring 
break

• Monday, May 22: Session adjourns

Continued from page 1

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/bills/text.php?number=HF3&version=4&session=ls90&session_year=2017&session_number=0
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/bills/text.php?number=SF166&version=3&session=ls90&session_year=2017&session_number=0
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/bills/text.php?number=HF30&version=1&session=ls90&session_year=2017&session_number=0
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/bills/text.php?number=SF1086&version=1&session=ls90&session_year=2017&session_number=0
http://www.house.leg.state.mn.us/members/members.asp?id=15494
https://mn.gov/governor/resources/legislation/


Capitol Update Report 
 
To: Minnesota Municipal Beverage Association (MMBA) 
 
From: Joseph Bagnoli  

Doug Carnival 
 
Date: February 17, 2017 

  
              
 

Introduced Bills  
Bills Introduced last week are highlighted 

 
 
Bill Introductions 

House  
File 

House  
Author 

Senate  
File 

Senate  
Author 

 
Notes 

Sunday Sales Bills 

 
 
Sunday Sales of-sale of 
Alcohol 
 
 
 
 

30 
 
 
 
 
 

Loon 
 
 
 
 
 

1086 
 

Miller 
 

1/19/17 - Passed Hs 
Commerce – Sent to 
House floor 
 
HF 30 - Will be taken up 
on house floor 2/20/17 
 
SF 1086 – Will be heard 
in Senate Commerce 
2/23 
 

 31 Loon None   

 128 Drazkowski 33 Osmek  

 230 Fenton None   

 129 Drazkowski 41 Osmek  

 
Sunday Sales of certain 
recreation vehicles 

 
557 

 
Kresha 

 
None   

      

Dedicating the proceeds 
from taxes on Sunday 
Liquor Sales 1091 Hansen 976 Klein  

      

Authorizing 
Municipalities to allow 
Off-Sales on Sundays None  1085 Miller  

      

Off-Sale Bills 

 
 
 
Changing 3.2% Labeling 
Requirements 68 Hoppe 444 Dahms 

1/19/17 - Passed Hs 
Commerce – Sent to 
House floor. 
 
1/31/17 - Heard in Senate 
Commerce.  Laid over. 



MMBA 
February 17, 2017 
Page 2 
 
      

 
Allowing internet sale of 
up to 2 cases of beer  

 
318 

 
S. 

Anderson 
 

298
 

Housley 

 
2/15/17 Heard in Hs. 
Commerce – Laid over. 

      

Regulating and Providing 
for direct ship wineries 791 Garofalo None   

      

Modifying Regulation of 
Off-Sale by Micro- 
Distilleries 1127 Nash 912 Housley 

2/21 – HF 1127 Will be 
heard in Hs. Commerce 

      

 
Off-Sale for Brew Pubs 
and Small Brewers 1078 Christensen None  

2/21 – HF 1127 Will be 
heard in Hs. Commerce 

      

Local On-Sale License Bills 

4:00 a.m. closing for 
Super Bowl 2018 in 
Hennepin/Ramsey Cos. 
 

 
 217 

 
Dehn 

 
 440 

 
 
 

 
Housley 

 
 
 

1/31/17 - Heard in Senate 
Commerce.  Laid over. 
 
2/15/17 – Heard in Hs. 
Commerce.  Laid over. 

      

Allowing on-sale at two 
restaurants in Mpls.  

 
218 

 
Dehn 

 
188

 
Champion  

      

Allowing on-sale at a 
restaurant in South Mpls 
 
 

 
283 

 
Hornstein 

 
267 

 
 
 

 
Dibble 

 
 
 

1/31/17 - Heard in Senate 
Commerce.  Laid over. 
 
2/15/17 – Heard in Hs. 
Commerce.  Laid over. 

      

Allowing on-sale license 
for a municipal golf 
course in New Hope 826 Freiberg 678 Rest 

 
2/15/17 – Heard in Hs. 
Commerce.  Laid over. 

      

Allowing a Special Liquor 
License for the City of 
Sartell None  1156 Fischbach 

 

      

On- Sale Bills 

Authorizing holders of an 
on-sale license to provide 
catering service  720 Franson  501 Housley 

 

      

4:00 am closing time 
permanently statewide 1008 Howe  891 Osmek 

 
2/15/17 – Heard in Hs. 
Commerce.  Laid over. 

      

Allowing Brew Pubs to 
Sell to Retail Licensee at 
the Airport 1050 Hoppe None  

 
2/15/17 – Heard in Hs. 
Commerce.  Laid over. 

      



MMBA 
February 17, 2017 
Page 3 
 

General Business Bills 

Requiring a uniform 
statewide minimum wage 

 
180 

 
Hertaus 

 
None   

      

 
 
 
Providing Uniformity for 
Employment Mandates: 
Wage, Benefits. 
 
 
 
 
 

600 
 
 
 
 
 

Garofalo 
 
 
 
 
 

580 
 
 
 
 
 

Miller 
 
 
 
 
 

2/2/17 – Passed out of 
House Jobs Committee, 
as amended.   
 
2/18/17 Passed out of 
House Gov. Ops. 
Committee.  Sent to 
House Ways & Means 
Committee. 
 
2/7/17 – Passed out of 
Senate Jobs Committee.  
 
2/14/17 Passed out of 
Senate Local Govt.  Sent 
to Senate Finance 
Committee 

      

Authorizing the MN Joint 
Underwriting Association 
– Dram Shop Insurance 1046 Loonan 879 Utke 

2/21 – Will be heard in 
Senate Commerce 

      

Tax Provisions 

Providing a vendor  
allowance to businesses 
that collect sales tax 186 Nash 237 Jensen 

2/7/17 Heard in Senate 
Tax.  Laid over for 
possible inclusion in Tax 
bill. 

      

Charitable Gambling – 
Changing Tax Calculation  226 Dettmer  419 Nelson 

2/8/17 – Passed House 
Commerce Committee. 
 
2/15/17 Heard in House 
Tax. Laid over for 
possible inclusion in Tax 
bill 

      

Repeals June 
Accelerated Tax 
Payments 138 Knoblach 379 Relph 

2/7/17 Heard in Senate 
Tax.  Laid over for 
possible inclusion in Tax 
bill 

      

North Mankato to impose 
local food and beverage 
tax 613 Johnson, C.  521 Frentz  

      

Sales Tax Exemption for 
certain meals and drinks 
and capital equipment 908 McDonald  789 Jensen 

2/15 Heard in House Tax.  
Laid over for possible 
inclusion in Tax bill. 

      

Providing a Credit for 
Small Wineries 1124 Franson  866 Ingebrigtsen  



MMBA 
February 17, 2017 
Page 4 
 
      

Tax Delinquency – 
Providing guidelines for 
payment plans  1253 West None   

      

Lawful Gambling Taxes – 
Modifying the Calculation None  1069 Pratt  

      

Other 

Eliminating the Alcohol 
and other Drug Abuse 
Advisory Council 592 Drazkowski 

 
None   

      

Changing Legal Drinking 
Age to 19 1049 Hoppe None 

  

      

Authorizing persons 
under 21 Serving in the 
Armed Forces to 
consume, purchase or 
possess alcohol 1213 McDonald None 

  

      

 
 

This Past Week 
 
Uniform Labor Standards 
 
On Tuesday, the Uniform Labor Standards bill took another step forward in the Senate 
where it was heard in the Senate Local Government Committee. The bill passed out of 
this committee on a straight party line vote of 9-6, and was sent to the Senate Finance 
Committee.  
 
The week ended with the bill in the Senate Finance committee and the House Ways & 
Means committee.  Each of these committees is the last stop before the Floor in their 
respective bodies.  
 
No Sales Tax on Meals of Employees / Charitable Gambling 
 
On Wednesday, the House Tax Committee heard HF 908 (McDonald) which exempts 
meals given to employees or customers from sales tax.   It also exempts from sales tax 
the purchase of capital equipment.   The bill was heard and laid over for possible 
inclusion in the House omnibus tax bill.  
 
 
In the same hearing, HF 226 (Dettmer) was heard.  This bill makes donation from 
charities tax exempt to the charity.   Under current law, Minnesota Charitable Gambling 
locations have to pay sales tax for donation made to charities.  This bill also was laid 
over for possible inclusion in the House omnibus tax bill.  
 



MMBA 
February 17, 2017 
Page 5 
 
 
Liquor Bills 
 
 This past week the House Commerce Committee heard the following bills:   
 
  
HF283(Hornstein)  - Authorizes Minneapolis to issue a liquor license to a restaurant 
 
HF217(Dehn) – Extending closing time to 4:00 a.m. for four days during the Superbowl  
       in Hennepin and Ramsey County 
 
HF1008(Howe) – Extending closing time to 4:00 a.m. permanently, every day. 
 
HF826(Freiberg) - Authorizing New Hope to issue a municipal liquor license for a  
                              municipal golf  course. 
 
The MMBA did not testify on the first four bills, but is very supportive of HF826..   
However, the MMBA testified in opposition to the next two bills: 
 
The first, HF 1050(Hoppe) would allow a brewpub to transport and sell their beer at a 
bar in the Airport.  Under current law, brewpubs are considered a retailer and are not 
allowed to sell their product to another retailer.  
 
The second bill, HF 318(S. Anderson) would allow for the importation of up to two cases 
of beer to be shipped to customers directly.  The MMBA, MLBA and the Beer 
Wholesalers, and the Wine and Spirits Wholesalers testified against this bill. 
 
 

This Coming Week 
 
Sunday Sales:  This coming week will be the week that Sunday Sales receives a vote 
on the House floor.   It is likely to pass.   On Wednesday, February 2, a Sunday Sales 
bill will be heard in the Senate Commerce Committee where it is likely to pass as well. 
 
On Tuesday, the House Commerce Committee is going to hear two bills that the MMBA 
will oppose. 
 
Minnesota Distiller’s Guild bill – This bill does three things 
 

 Allows distilleries to serve alcohol on Sunday, even if they don’t serve food. 

 Allows distilleries to self-distribute 

 Allows distilleries to sell off00sale any size bottle.  Currently, they can only 
sell 375 ml. 

 
Testimony will center on the third item – the bottle size.   The MMBA fought to have the 
bottle size a little different than the usual size of 750 ml.  Distillers had argued that they 
needed to be able sell off-sale to promote their product and to leave customers who had 



MMBA 
February 17, 2017 
Page 6 
 
made the trip to see the distillery happy.   The MMBA suggested that a 375 ml bottle 
would do just that.   It was not the smallest size and would serve as a promotional size.  
Panther distillery had proposed it. 
 
Now the MN Distillers Guild seeks a larger size.  We will resist this.   The Wine & Spirits 
Wholesalers and the Teamsters also will resist this bill. 
 
 
Minnesota Craft Brewers Bill:  The bill does three things: 
 

 Changes the size of allowable “vessels” that a brewery may sell to anything 
between 500 ml – 2 liters, or 16.9 oz. – 67.6 oz.  --- Under current law a brewery 
or brewpub may only sell a growler – 64 ounces or a 750 ml.  
 

 Removes the cap on the amount of growlers that a brewery may sell at off-sale.  
Currently, a brewery that produces under 20,000 barrels may sell up to 500 
barrels in growlers at off-sale.  This is solely designed for “Dangerous Man 
Brewery.” 
 

 Currently, a brewery may only sell growlers if they are under 20,000 barrels.  The 
bill would raise the amount of barrels to 250,000.   Four years ago, we agreed to 
move the amount from 3,500 barrels to 20,000 so that Fulton could expand.   
Last summer, Fulton announced that it was crossing the 20,000 barrel threshold 
and could not sell growlers.   They now seek to change the law again. 
 

 
The MMBA, MLBA, Beer Wholesalers and the Teamsters will resist this bill.  In 
particular, the MMBA will make the following points: 
 

1. Though the sale of growlers clearly cuts into liquor stores profits, because 
they product is in an odd shaped bottle that is perishable, it is tolerated.  The 
closer the bottle size is to a can or bottle of beer the less we like it.    
 

2. The increase in size from 20,000 to 250,000 is excessive.  A brewery that has 
made it to 20,000 barrels is no longer a small entity and no longer needs 
special treatment. 

 

3. Removing the cap on growlers for sale turns breweries into full time liquor 
stores --- Dangerous Man is a clear example of that. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
. 



MMBA 
February 17, 2017 
Page 7 
 

General Legislative Update 
 
Stadium / Suites 
 
The biggest news this past week was the resignations of Minnesota Sports Facilities 
Authority Chair Michele Kelm-Helgen and CEO Ted Mondale.  These resignations came 
on the heels of a tough Legislative Auditor’s report that absolved them of breaking the 
law, but nevertheless concluded that ethical standards had not been met.   After a 17-1 
committee vote in favor of legislation that dismantled the current board and removed 
Chair Helgen, the writing was on the wall and the resignations came. 
 
The People’s Stadium is in a funny place right now just under a year away from the 
Superbowl.   
 
Resignations 

Auditors Report 
 
 
And then there were 134 
 

Although it has not made much difference, until this past Tuesday, the House had only 
had 133 sitting Representatives.  Last summer, the court ruled that GOP Rep. Bob 
Barret did not reside in his district and thus was ineligible to run for office.   The court 
determined that a special election was needed, with eligible candidates. The special 
election was held on February 14th and the GOP held on to the seat and extended their 
majority with a win by Anne Neu in district 32B – Chisago County.  Thus, the House 
make is currently 77 Republicans to 57 Democrats.  One of the largest majorities that 
Republicans have had since party designation was adopted.  
 
32B Special Election 
 



 



Capitol Update Report 
 
To: Minnesota Municipal Beverage Association (MMBA) 
 
From: Joseph Bagnoli  

Doug Carnival 
 
Date: February 24, 2017 

  
              
           
 

Introduced Bills  
Bills Introduced last week are highlighted 

 
 
Bill Introductions 

House  
File 

House  
Author 

Senate  
File 

Senate  
Author 

 
Notes 

Sunday Sales Bills 

 
 
Sunday Sales off-sale of 
Alcohol 
 
 
 
 

30 
 
 
 
 
 

Loon 
 
 
 
 
 

1086 
 
 
 
 
 

Miller 
 
 
 
 
 

1/19/17 - Passed Hs 
Commerce – Sent to 
House floor 
 
HF 30 - Will be taken up 
on house floor 2/20/17 
 
SF 1086 – Passed 
Senate Commerce – 
2/23.  Will be heard on 
Senate Floor 2/27. 

      

Municipalities Authorized 
to allow off-sale on 
Sundays 31 Loon None   

      

Municipalities Authorized 
to allow off-sale on 
Sundays 128 Drazkowski 33 Osmek  

      

Allowing Sunday Sales 230 Fenton None   

      

Allowing Sunday Sales 129 Drazkowski 41 Osmek  

      

Sunday Sales of certain 
recreation vehicles 

 
557 

 
Kresha 

 
None   

      

Dedicating the proceeds 
from taxes on Sunday 
Liquor Sales 1091 Hansen 976 Klein  

      

Municipalities Authorized 
to allow off-sale on 
Sundays None  1085 Miller  

http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF0030&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF1086
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF0031&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF0128&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF33
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF0230&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF0129&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF41
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF0557&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF1091&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF976
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF1085


MMBA 
February 24, 2017 
Page 2 
 
      

Off-Sale Bills 

 
 
 
Changing 3.2% Labeling 
Requirements 68 Hoppe 444 Dahms 

1/19/17 - Passed Hs 
Commerce – Sent to 
House floor. 
 
1/31/17 - Heard in Senate 
Commerce.  Laid over. 

      

 
Allowing internet sale of 
up to 2 cases of beer  

 
318 

 
S. Anderson 

 
298 

 
Housley 

 
2/15/17 Heard in Hs. 
Commerce – Laid over. 

      

Regulating and Providing 
for direct ship wineries 791 Garofalo 1418 P. Anderson  

      

MN Craft Distillers Bill  1127 Nash 912 Housley 

2/21 – HF 1127 Heard in 
Hs. Commerce – Laid 
over 

      

 
MN Brewers Guild Bill 1078 Christensen 1279 Housley 

2/21 – HF 1127 Heard in 
Hs. Commerce – Laid 
over 

      

Repealing Prohibition on 
Municipality Issuing 
multiple off-sale licenses 1439 S. Anderson None   

      

AGED - Off-Sale License 
for micro-distilleries 1691 Hoppe None   

      

Local On-Sale License Bills 

4:00 a.m. closing for 
Super Bowl 2018 in 
Hennepin/Ramsey Cos. 
 

 
 217 

 
 
 

 
Dehn 

 
 
 

 
 440 

 
 
 

 
Housley 

 
 
 

1/31/17 - Heard in Senate 
Commerce.  Laid over. 
 
2/15/17 – Heard in Hs. 
Commerce.  Laid over. 

      

Allowing on-sale at two 
restaurants in Mpls.  

 
218 

 
Dehn 

 
188 

 
Champion  

      

Allowing on-sale at a 
restaurant in South Mpls 
 
 

 
283 

 
 
 

 
Hornstein 

 
 
 

 
267 

 
 
 

 
Dibble 

 
 
 

1/31/17 - Heard in Senate 
Commerce.  Laid over. 
 
2/15/17 – Heard in Hs. 
Commerce.  Laid over. 

      

Allowing on-sale license 
for a municipal golf 
course in New Hope 826 Freiberg 678 Rest 

 
2/15/17 – Heard in Hs. 
Commerce.  Laid over. 

      

Allowing a Special Liquor 
License for the City of 1436 O’Driscoll 1156 Fischbach 

 

http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF0068&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF444
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF0318&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF298
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF0791&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF1418
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/bills/bill.php?f=HF1127&y=2017&ssn=0&b=house
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF912
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF1078&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF1279
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF1439&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF1691&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF0217&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF440
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF0218&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF188
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF0283&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF267
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF0826&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF678
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF1436&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF1156


MMBA 
February 24, 2017 
Page 3 
 
Sartell 
      

On-Sale License to NFL 
training site 1409 Klein None  

 

      

General On-Sale Bills 

Authorizing holders of an 
on-sale license to provide 
catering service  720 Franson  501 Housley 

 

      

4:00 am closing time 
permanently statewide 1008 Howe  891 Osmek 

 
2/15/17 – Heard in Hs. 
Commerce.  Laid over. 

      

Allowing Brew Pubs to 
Sell to Retail Licensee at 
the Airport 1050 Hoppe None  

 
2/15/17 – Heard in Hs. 
Commerce.  Laid over. 

      

Tip Credit/Inflation 
Adjustment Eliminated  1313 Gruenhagen None 

  

      

General Business Bills 

Requiring a uniform 
statewide minimum wage 

 
180 

 
Hertaus 

 
None   

      

 
 
 
Providing Uniformity for 
Employment Mandates: 
Wage, Benefits. 
 
 
 
 
 

600 
 
 
 
 
 

Garofalo 
 
 
 
 
 

580 
 
 
 
 
 

Miller 
 
 
 
 
 

2/2/17 – Passed out of 
House Jobs Committee, 
as amended.   
 
2/18/17 Passed out of 
House Gov. Ops. 
Committee.  Sent to 
House Ways & Means 
Committee. 
 
2/7/17 – Passed out of 
Senate Jobs Committee.   
 
2/14/17 Passed out of 
Senate Local Govt.  Sent 
to Senate Finance 
Committee 

      

Authorizing the MN Joint 
Underwriting Association 
– Dram Shop Insurance 1046 Loonan 879 Utke 

2/28 – Bill be heard in 
Senate Commerce.  

      

Eliminating Municipal 
Liquor Stores Exclusivity 1482 Lucero None   

      

Amending Notice 
Provisions – 
Architectural Barriers  1542 Smith 1407 Relph  

      

http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF1409
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF0720&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF501
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF1008&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF891
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF1050&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF1313&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF0180&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF0600&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF580
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF1046&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF879
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF1482&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF1542&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF1407


MMBA 
February 24, 2017 
Page 4 
 
      

Tax Provisions 

Providing a vendor  
allowance to businesses 
that collect sales tax 186 Nash 237 Jensen 

2/7/17 Heard in Senate 
Tax.  Laid over for 
possible inclusion in Tax 
bill. 

      

Charitable Gambling – 
Changing Tax Calculation  226 Dettmer  419 Nelson 

2/8/17 – Passed House 
Commerce Committee. 
 
2/15/17 Heard in House 
Tax. Laid over for 
possible inclusion in Tax 
bill 

      

Repeals June 
Accelerated Tax 
Payments 138 Knoblach 379 Relph 

2/7/17 Heard in Senate 
Tax.  Laid over for 
possible inclusion in Tax 
bill 

      

North Mankato to impose 
local food and beverage 
tax 613 Johnson, C.  521 Frentz  

      

Sales Tax Exemption for 
certain meals and drinks 
and capital equipment 908 McDonald  789 Jensen 

2/15 Heard in House Tax.  
Laid over for possible 
inclusion in Tax bill. 

      

Providing a Credit for 
Small Wineries 1124 Franson  866 Ingebrigtsen  

      

Tax Delinquency – 
Providing guidelines for 
payment plans  1253 West None   

      

Lawful Gambling Taxes – 
Modifying the Calculation None  1069 Pratt  

      

Sale Tax Collection – 
Marketplace providers 
and certain Retailers 1480 Chamberlain None   

      

Other 

Eliminating the Alcohol 
and other Drug Abuse 
Advisory Council 592 Drazkowski 

 
None   

      

Changing Legal Drinking 
Age to 19 1049 Hoppe None 

  

      

Authorizing persons 
under 21 Serving in the 
Armed Forces to 
consume, purchase or 1213 McDonald None 

  

http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF0186&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF237
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF0226&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF419
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF0138&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF379
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF0613&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF521
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF0908&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF789
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF1124&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF866
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF1253&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF1069
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF1480
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF0592&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF1049&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF1213&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017


MMBA 
February 24, 2017 
Page 5 
 
possess alcohol 

This Past Week 
 
Sunday Sales:  The House passed a bill that allows liquor stores to be open on Sunday 
from 10:00-6:00.   The bill has an effective date of July 1. 
 
In the Senate, the Senate Commerce committee heard the companion bill.  Testifying 
against the bill were: 
 

• Tony Chesak – outlining the reasons that this was bad for stores broadly. 
 

• Mark Gettinger – owner of MD Liquors in Crystal.  He described the impact to a 
store. 

 

• Peter Trocke – owner of Riverfront Liquors in Mankato – He describe the impact 
to his store. 
 

The bill passed out of committee 7-4, and was sent to the Senate floor.  It will be 
brought up on the floor on Monday, February 27. 
 
 
Minnesota Craft Brewers Bill:  
 
On Wednesday, the House Commerce committee heard the Minnesota Craft Brewers 
bill.  The bill does three things: 
 

• Changes the size of allowable “vessels” that a brewery may sell to anything 
between 500 ml – 2 liters, or 16.9 oz. – 67.6 oz.  --- Under current law a brewery 
or brewpub may only sell a growler – 64 ounces or a 750 ml.  
 

• Removes the cap on the amount of growlers that a brewery may sell at off-sale.  
Currently, a brewery that produces under 20,000 barrels may sell up to 500 
barrels in growlers at off-sale.  This is solely designed for “Dangerous Man 
Brewery.” 
 

• Currently, a brewery may only sell growlers if they are under 20,000 barrels.  The 
bill would raise the amount of barrels to 250,000.   Four years ago, we agreed to 
move the amount from 3,500 barrels to 20,000 so that Fulton could expand.   
Last summer, Fulton announced that it was crossing the 20,000-barrel threshold 
and could not sell growlers.   They now seek to change the law again. 
 

Testifying in favor of the bill included: 
 

• Indeed Brewery and Fair State Brewery discussed the need to sell different sizes 
of growlers.  They said there were people that brought in very large containers 
and that the cost of the smaller containers was a factor. 

 



MMBA 
February 24, 2017 
Page 6 
 

• Dangerous Man, who discussed the fact that Dangerous Man currently is about 
to go over the limit of 500 barrels that they may sell in growlers off-sale and that 
they would like to remove this limit. 

 

• Ryan Petz – Fulton Brewery – described how Fulton went over the 20,000-gallon 
total limit and thus could not sell growlers anymore and how he would like the 
limit to go up to breweries of 250,000 gallons. 

 
 
On behalf of the MLBA, Jennifer Schoenzeit, the President of the MLBA, and the owner 
of Zipps Liquor Store testified. Despite being a little nervous, Jennifer did a great job.  
She made the following points: 
 

1. Though the sale of growlers clearly cuts into liquor stores profits, because 
they product is in an odd shaped bottle that is perishable, it is tolerated.  The 
closer the bottle size is to a can or bottle of beer the less we like it.    
 

2. The increase in size from 20,000 to 250,000 is excessive.  A brewery that has 
made it to 20,000 barrels is no longer a small entity and no longer needs 
special treatment.  This essentially turns five of the biggest breweries into 
liquor stores.  The five are Schells, Summit, Surly, Fifth Street/Glueks, and 
Fulton. 

 

3. Removing the cap on growlers for sale turns breweries into full time liquor 
stores --- Dangerous Man is a clear example of that. 

 

 
Minnesota Distiller’s Guild bill  
 
On Wednesday, the House Commerce committee also heard the Minnesota Distillers 
Guild Bill. The bill does three things 
 

• Allows distilleries to serve alcohol on Sunday, even if they don’t serve food. 
 

• Allows distilleries to self-distribute. 
 

• Allows distilleries to sell off-sale any size bottle.  Currently, they can only sell 
375 ml. 

 
MLBA Executive Director, Tony Chesak offered testimony that centered on the bottle 
size.   The MLBA fought to have the bottle size a little different than the usual size of 
750 ml.  Distillers had argued that they needed to be able sell off-sale to promote their 
product and to leave customers that had made the trip to see the distillery happy.   The 
MLBA suggested that a 375 ml bottle would do just that.   It was not the smallest size 
and would serve as a promotional size.  Panther distillery had proposed it. 
 



MMBA 
February 24, 2017 
Page 7 
 
On behalf of the Wine & Spirits Wholesalers, Sam Kaplan testified in relation to the 
wholesaler issues.  Finally, the Teamsters resisted the bill. 
 
 

This Coming Week 
 
Sunday Sales:  This coming week will be the week that Sunday Sales receives a vote 
on the Senate floor.   It is likely to pass.   
 
At that point the House can accept the Senate version, or the House can reject it and go 
to conference committee.  There are slight differences between the House and Senate 
version.  The House version sets the hours at 10:00-6:00; the Senate version sets them 
at 11:00-6:00.   The Senate version also prohibits wholesalers from delivering or 
merchandising on Sunday.  The House only prohibits delivery. 
 
There will be a lot of pressure for the House to accept the Senate bill, just to get the 
issue behind them. 
 
 
Uniform Labor Standards 
 
On Monday, February 27, the House Uniform Labor bill will be heard in the House Ways 
& Means Committee.  This is the last stop before the House floor.   It is very likely to 
pass. 
 
On Sunday the Editorial board published the attached editorial supporting pre-emption, 
and suggesting a compromise.   The story is attached here:  Star Tribune Editorial 
 
 

General Legislative Update 
 
Stadium / Suites 
 
The Governor appointed former Republican house member and former Chief Justice of 
the Minnesota Supreme Court, Kathleen Blatz to head the Minnesota Sports Facilities 
Authority. 
 
 
Protests Bills 
 
Legislation that seeks to curtail protests on highways received very raucous hearings 
this past week in the House and Senate.   Proponents sought to increase the penalty 
from a misdemeanor to a gross misdemeanor or jail time for these types of protests.  
Opponents, argued that this was an attempt to chill the great American tradition of 
protest. 
 
This legislation has had a number of hotly debated hearings so far this session and 

http://www.startribune.com/dayton-gop-should-pre-empt-cities-and-seek-compromise-on-labor-rules/414757403/


MMBA 
February 24, 2017 
Page 8 
 
there will be more to come. 
 
Protest Bills                                                                     
 
 
Fireworks - Legal 
 
Another piece of legislation that has surfaced many times in recent history may have new life 
this year. A bill has been introduced, that would legalize the sale of certain fireworks in 
Minnesota. This bill would allow for year-round sales and would also allow some non-profits to 
get a 60-day permit that would allow them to sell products from a tent, while year-round 
businesses would need to operate from a building that meets fire code. The State Fire Marshall 
remains opposed to this bill which could, in the end, make it tough to pass. 
 
Bang Boom Ahhhh 
 

 
February Forecast 
 
This Tuesday, the Office of Management & Budget will release the forecast that will 
guide the final resolution of the state budget.  Typically, the Governor will submit 
changes to the budget that he submitted within the next ten days in response to the new 
budget forecast.   Then the hard work for the legislature begins on how to reconcile all 
of the competing demands on what promises to be a substantial on-going surplus.  
Expect the debate to be between tax relief, road funding, health and education funding.   
These are the three large drivers. 
 

http://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001WvM1Pc3WDSy751N-9k_mQOikxg_Wi9gBFrZCrJXLn2xk0r8phW7eQYKZ6zfCeWFBo5KfzHeAhgHXqztjWdjODOCxa_zAElC8K-FVPSId6gCEiVePCJ5W4GN9eH6rS8QrkFwatYMiObPkvLz8muQ5QGlDcQ4azKCSzs6DGzyWmLrDo_ubUTEfiNoHjUxeBcUCNgBptnxbaRwYrhK-NQucxki1A-795QoXjPNfCr9NqpzzdsvZbc_Qc3f84q54FDTXoLdiiZb1OSWVNFOfwtwRdXdLjhZTZXCv&c=pdL_irgXX9rhvVdE-rq5UhrqifnV0pkOwASXOIjqPaJK08QMvmMvIw==&ch=_ySxoW68jq2te9gj7djvObjJS_y9TZelFa78-j1ZtubUPRSSzff11w==
http://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001WvM1Pc3WDSy751N-9k_mQOikxg_Wi9gBFrZCrJXLn2xk0r8phW7eQYKZ6zfCeWFBkWdpBp3xm3eCGZ8qRLqPcL_Zh8LQxBcNgRSYCCKztibo3dcuoZ2DFpco6tLjqYqCuMlryGWUQRL_9gpGY4EDQAtUcLjZX2Zxtj9fI9OOzRTOd277trRgguU8-4jRtQ_9mJqGy5dAZnZU07_-ToVEcUFC-PO371spZvJBLRp2R8nuuQDcJ_aaLApPBVyxd0ut8OtyyP3gXv0=&c=pdL_irgXX9rhvVdE-rq5UhrqifnV0pkOwASXOIjqPaJK08QMvmMvIw==&ch=_ySxoW68jq2te9gj7djvObjJS_y9TZelFa78-j1ZtubUPRSSzff11w==






North Metro Telecommunications Commission 

Meeting Talking Points 
February 15, 2017 

 

 The North Metro TV HD upgrade is done.  The two studios, master control, and the production 

truck are all fully operational.  The truck was just completed at the end of January.  With all of the 

equipment paid for, a little over $18,000 remains of the $2,000,000 bond.   The Commission and 

City Managers approved spending $5,119.00 of that money on the graphics wrap for the 

production truck.  A request has been sent to the Circle Pines City Council for their approval.  The 

remaining funds will be applied to the final bond payment.  

 

 North Metro TV is in the process of filling two open positions.  The first has been re-designated 

from an Outreach Coordinator to a Municipal Producer.  This person will be responsible for 

producing content for the city channels.  He or she will work closely with the News Team and the 

Special Projects Coordinator to make sure all of the programming needs of our Cities are being 

met.  The second open position is for a Video Engineer.  The job description is being retooled to 

include HD technology and maintenance, system planning, and software and programming skills.  

Both positions should be filled by the end of March.   

 

 NMTV staff have been scheduling and attending HD upgrade meetings with several Cities, 

including Blaine, Lino Lakes, Ham Lake and Circle Pines.  Work is being done with Spring Lake 

Park's HD signal to find a solution for HD transport from City Halls to the North Metro TV head-

end.  Staff continues with video projects for the Cities as well, including the snow plowing PSA 

for Circle Pines, a history project and the Mayor Wilharbor video for Centerville, a series of 

recruitment videos for the Lino Lakes Public Safety Fire Division, the Ham Lake Snowbowl 

preview, and a video for Blaine called Economic Growth and the Blaine Job Market.  

 

 The Commission and City Managers approved upgrading the sets for the new HD studios.  

Reserve funds originally  intended for the truck replacement were approved to be spent on the sets.  

The truck replacement was paid for with the HD upgrade bond.  

 Franchise Fees earned in 2016 were reviewed.  Franchise fees returned to Cities will be delivered 

on February 16th.  

 The Commission and City Managers approved purchasing Carousel graphics generators for each 

city channel.  The units will generate graphics and play videos and audio on the city channels in 

HD.  They will be located in the North Metro TV head-end making staff updates to the data more 

timely and efficient.  This will also relieve City staff from the responsibility of creating content for 

the City channels.  Cities will still retain control over all content on their channels.  Franchise fees 

collected in 2016 were higher than estimated.  Some of those funds will be used to pay for the 

devices.   

 The 2017 Executive Committee was elected.  Matt Percy of Circle Pines will serve as Chair.  Dick 

Swanson of Blaine will serve as Vice Chair.  Cindy Hansen of Spring Lake Park will serve as 

Treasurer.  Mike Murphy of Lexington will serve as Secretary.   

 

 

PLEASE encourage your council members to call me if they have any questions you can’t answer.  I 

would be happy to answer any questions they may have.  Heidi Arnson at NMTV.  Direct line is 

763-231-2801.  Email is harnson@northmetrotv.com.   



 










	New Business - Metro Cities Membership 2017.pdf
	3608_001
	3609_001
	Blank Page




